
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 26 February 
2020 

5.30 pm 
Committee Rooms 1-2, City 

Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Naomi Tweddle (Chair), Bob Bushell (Vice-Chair), 
Biff Bean, Bill Bilton, Alan Briggs, Kathleen Brothwell, Chris Burke, 
Gary Hewson, Ronald Hills, Rebecca Longbottom and 
Edmund Strengiel 
 

Substitute members: 
 

Councillors Jackie Kirk and Neil Murray 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Simon Cousins, Democratic Services, Kieron Manning, Louise 
Simpson and Dave Walker 
 

 
The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented 
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda. 
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to 
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the 
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant 
information. 
 
Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved, 
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as 
part of the process. 
 
Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the 
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have 
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the 
table at the relevant time. 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 29 January 2020  
 

5 - 8 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Work to Trees in City Council Ownership  
 

9 - 14 

Public Document Pack



 

4.  Applications for Development  
 

 

(a)   Land Adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre, Riseholme Road, 
Lincoln  
 

15 - 72 

(b)   86 Wolsey Way, Lincoln  
 

73 - 94 



 

 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 (AS AMENDED) 
 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT 

APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and 
Advertisement Applications are: 
 

1. The Planning Application File. This is a file with the same reference number as that 
shown on the Agenda for the Application. Information from the planning application file 
is available online at https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/  
 
The application files contain the following documents: 
 

a. the application forms; 
b. plans of the proposed development; 
c. site plans; 
d. certificate relating to ownership of the site; 
e. consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies; 
f.  letters and documents from interested parties; 
g. memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council. 

 
2. Any previous Planning Applications referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for the 

particular application or in the Planning Application specified above. 
 

3. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan – Adopted April 2017 
 

4. National Planning Policy Framework - March 2012 
 

5. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 5 
above set out in the following table. These documents may be inspected at the Planning 
Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln. 

 
APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 5 above.) 
 
Application No.: Additional Background Papers 

 

https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON 
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006) 

 
 
Criteria: 
 

 Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge 
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the 
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of 
information. 

 

 Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have 
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental 
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc. 

 

 Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason 
of economic or environmental impact. 

 

 Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in 
the area of a site. 

 

 Significant proposals outside the urban area. 
 

 Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development. 
 

 Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would 
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control. 

 

 Development which could create significant hazards or pollution. 
 
 
So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the 
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as 
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears 
essential.   
 
A proforma is available for all Members.  This will need to be completed to request a site visit 
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site 
visit.  It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration 
of a planning application at Committee.  It should also be used to request further or additional 
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.   
  



Planning Committee 29 January 2020 

 
Present: Councillor Naomi Tweddle (in the Chair),  

Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor 
Bill Bilton, Councillor Alan Briggs, Councillor 
Kathleen Brothwell, Councillor Chris Burke, Councillor 
Gary Hewson, Councillor Ronald Hills, Councillor 
Rebecca Longbottom and Councillor Edmund Strengiel 
 

Apologies for Absence: None. 
 

 
53.  Confirmation of Minutes - 4 December 2019  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2019 be 
confirmed. 
 

54.  Declarations of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were received. 
 

55.  Work to Trees in City Council Ownership  
 

The Arboricultural Officer: 
 

a. advised members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in the City 
Council’s ownership and sought consent to progress the works identified, 
as detailed at Appendix A of his report 
 

b. highlighted that the list did not represent all the work undertaken to Council 
trees, it represented all the instances where a tree was either identified for 
removal, or where a tree enjoyed some element of protection under 
planning legislation, and thus formal consent was required 
 

c. explained that Ward Councillors had been notified of the proposed works. 
 
Members requested further clarification to the reference within the schedule of 
work to trees in Hartsholme Ward having ‘significant features which identified 
them as potentially hazardous specimens.’  
 
The Arboricultural Officer advised that these trees contained large cavities or over 
extended branches that were likely to fail. 
 
Members further enquired whether the hazardous specimen trees were in a poor 
state due to lack of maintenance. 
 
The Arboricultural Officer advised that a lot of trees near the public highway 
naturally grew towards the light which caused phototropic development across 
the road. Maintenance of these trees was prioritised due to their risk of failure. 
 
Members offered their support to the planting of hedgerows in Birchwood Ward.  
 
An update was requested on council policy to plant further trees in the city. 
 

5

Item No. 1



The Arboricultural Officer confirmed that the trees had been ordered for delivery 
in the next two weeks. Sites had been identified subject to location of utility 
services and the digging of reception pits as necessary. 
 
RESOLVED that tree works set out in the schedules appended to the report be 
approved. 
 

56.  Member Statement  
 

In the interest of transparency Councillor Bean requested it be noted that he sat 
on the Hartsholme Community Trust, which had been provided with materials free 
of charge to assist with community projects by Lindum BMS, the agent for the 
application for ‘Council Central Depot, Waterside South, Lincoln’.  
 

57.  Council Central Depot, Waterside South, Lincoln  
 

The Planning Manager: 
 

a) advised that planning permission was sought for the demolition of an 
existing range building and installation of permanent raking shores and 
external rain-screen cladding at the Council Central Depot at Stamp End, 
Waterside South, Lincoln 
 

b) reported that the application site lay to the east of Lincoln City Centre 
fronting Waterside South, sited to the south of the River Witham and to the 
north of the Sincil Dyke with Siemens to the east, characterised by 
industrial uses 

 
c) provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows: 

 

 Policy LP5: Delivering Prosperity and Jobs 

 Policy LP26: Design and Amenity 

 National Planning Policy Framework 
 

d) outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise 
 

e) advised members of the main issues to be considered as part of the 
application to assess the proposal with regard to: 
 

 Effect on National and Local Planning Policy 

 Effect on Local Amenity 

 Effect on Highway Safety 

 Other Matters 
 

f) concluded that: 
  

 The proposed development was appropriate in terms of its use and 
provided a solution to an ongoing operational issue at the nearby 
works site. 

 It would not be detrimental to the residential or the visual amenity of 
the locality in line with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. 

 
Members discussed the content of the report in further detail, requesting 
clarification on the following areas in relation to the proposals: 

6



 

 The need for the installation of permanent raking shores. 

 Whether the archaeology of the site had been considered in light of the 
amount of industrial heritage in this area. 

 
The Planning Manager responded as follows: 
 

 The raking shores were necessary to provide structural stability and to give 
external support to the remaining building. 

 There was no ground disturbance proposed on this project, however, the 
planning process would always respect the need to safeguard industrial 
heritage. 
  

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions:  
 

 Development to be carried out in accordance with the plans  

 Development to commence within 3 years 

 Reporting of any unexpected contamination found during the demolition  
 

7



This page is intentionally blank.



PLANNING COMMITTEE  26 FEBRUARY 2020  
  

 

 
SUBJECT:  

 
WORK TO TREES IN CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP 
 

DIRECTORATE:   
 

COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT 

REPORT 
AUTHOR: 

STEVE BIRD – ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (COMMUNITIES & STREET 
SCENE)  

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 
 
 
1.2        

To advise Members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in City Council ownership, 
and to seek consent to progress the works identified. 
 
This list does not represent all the work undertaken to Council trees. It is all the instances 
where a tree is either identified for removal, or where a tree enjoys some element of 
protection under planning legislation, and thus formal consent is required. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 
 

In accordance with policy, Committee’s views are sought in respect of proposed works to 
trees in City Council ownership, see appendix A. 
 

2.2 The responsibility for the management of any given tree is determined by the ownership 
responsibilities of the land on which it stands. Trees within this schedule are therefore on 
land owned by the Council, with management responsibilities distributed according to the 
purpose of the land. However, it may also include trees that stand on land for which the 
council has management responsibilities under a formal agreement but is not the owner. 

  
3. Tree Assessment 

 
3.1 All cases are brought to this committee only after careful consideration and assessment 

by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer (together with independent advice where 
considered appropriate). 
 

3.2 All relevant Ward Councillors are notified of the proposed works for their respective 
wards prior to the submission of this report.     
                              

3.3 Although the Council strives to replace any tree that has to be removed, in some 
instances it is not possible or desirable to replant a tree in either the exact location or of 
the same species. In these cases a replacement of an appropriate species is scheduled 
to be planted in an alternative appropriate location. This is usually in the general locality 
where this is practical, but where this is not practical, an alternative location elsewhere in 
the city may be selected. Tree planting is normally scheduled for the winter months 
following the removal. 
 
 
 

9

Item No. 3



4. Consultation and Communication     
  

4.1 All ward Councillors are informed of proposed works on this schedule, which are within 
their respective ward boundaries. 
 

4.2 The relevant portfolio holders are advised in advance in all instances where, in the 
judgement of officers, the matters arising within the report are likely to be sensitive or 
contentious. 
 

 

 

5. Strategic Priorities  
 

Let’s enhance our remarkable place  
 
The Council acknowledges the importance of trees and tree planting to the environment. 
Replacement trees are routinely scheduled wherever a tree has to be removed, in-line 
with City Council policy. 
  

 

5.1 

 

 
 
 

6. Organisational Impacts  
 

6.1 Finance (including whole life costs where applicable) 
 

 
i) Finance 

 

The costs of any tree works arising from this report will be borne by the existing budgets. 
There are no other financial implications, capital or revenue, unless stated otherwise in 
the works schedule.   

 
ii) Staffing   N/A 

  
iii) Property/Land/ Accommodation Implications      N/A 

 
iv) Procurement 

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the City Council’s grounds 
maintenance contractor. The Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance contract ends 
August 2020. The staff are all suitably trained, qualified, and experienced.  

 
6.2 
 

Legal Implications including Procurement Rules  

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the Council’s grounds maintenance 
contractor. The contractor was appointed after an extensive competitive tendering 
exercise. The contract for this work was let in April 2006. 

 
The Council is compliant with all TPO and Conservation area legislative requirements.  
 
Equality, Diversity and Human Rights  
 
There are no negative implications. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
6.3 

10



7. Risk Implications 
 

7.1 The work identified on the attached schedule represents the Arboricultural Officer’s 
advice to the Council relevant to the specific situation identified. This is a balance of 
assessment pertaining to the health of the tree, its environment, and any legal or health 
and safety concerns. In all instances the protection of the public is taken as paramount. 
Deviation from the recommendations for any particular situation may carry ramifications. 
These can be outlined by the Arboricultural Officer pertinent to any specific case.  
 

7.2 Where appropriate, the recommended actions within the schedule have been subject to a 
formal risk assessment. Failure to act on the recommendations of the Arboricultural 
Officer could leave the City Council open to allegations that it has not acted responsibly 
in the discharge of its responsibilities. 
 

8. Recommendation  
 

8.1 
 

That the works set out in the attached schedules be approved. 
 

 

 
 
Is this a key decision? 
 

No 
 

Do the exempt information 
categories apply? 
 

No 
 

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (call-in and 
urgency) apply? 
 

No 
 

How many appendices does 
the report contain? 
 

1 

List of Background Papers: 
 

                                         None 

Lead Officer: Mr S. Bird, Assistant Director (Communities & Street 
Scene) Telephone 873421 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 
NOTIFICATION OF INTENDED WORK TO TREES AND HEDGES 

RELEVANT TO THEIR CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP STATUS. 
SCHEDULE No2 / SCHEDULE DATE: 26/02/2020  

 
 

Item 
No 

Status 
e.g. 
CAC 

Specific 
Location  

Tree Species 
and description 
/ reasons for 
work / Ward. 
 

Recommendation 

1 N/A  15 East Liberty  Abbey Ward  
4 x XCuprocyparis 
leylandii (Leyland 
cypress)  
Fell   
The trees are in 
contact with and 
damaging the 
adjoining private 
property boundary; as 
this species does not 
regenerate from ripe-
wood pruning is an 
unviable tree 
management option. 
 
  

Approve works and replant 
with native species, in a 
suitable location.  

2 N/A Rookery Lane – 
Allenby Road 
Junction  

Abbey Ward  
4 x Remnant Fraxinus 
excelsior (Ash)  
Retrospective notice 
These trees were 
felled in the interest of 
public safety; 
surveying resulted in 
the discovery of 
weakened branch 
unions and cavities, 
which placed each 
tree at an elevated risk 
of failure.  
 
 

Replant with 2x Alnus 
glutinosa ‘Lacinata’ (Cut- 
leaved Alder) and 2 x 
Betula nigra (River Birch) 
in a suitable location.  

3  N/A Jasmine Road – 
Amenity grassland to 
the rear of number 
201  

Birchwood Ward  
1 x Sorbus aucuparia 
(Rowan)   
Retrospective notice   
This tree was removed 
as its stem had failed 
at a height of 
approximately 1 
metre.  
  

Replant a replacement 
Sorbus aucuparia (Rowan) 
in a suitable location.  

12



 

4 N/A  9 Chatterton Avenue  Castle Ward  
1 x Prunus cerasifera 
(Purple leaved plum)  
Fell 
This tree has 
significant canopy 
dieback, is of poor 
structural form and 
possesses a decay 
cavity within lower 
bole.   
 
 

Approve works and replant 
with a Prunus cerasifera 
(Purple leaved plum) in a 
suitable location. 

5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 79 Geneva Avenue  Glebe Ward  
1 x Sorbus aucuparia 
(Rowan)  
Fell 
This tree has a 
significantly sized 
open cavity which 
extends upwards 
toward a descending 
column of further 
decay; this 
compromises the 
stability of the entire 
tree and places it at 
risk of unpredictable 
failure. 
 
 

Approve works and replant 
with a Sorbus aria 
(Whitebeam) in a suitable 
location. 

6  Hartsholme Country 
Park  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hartsholme Ward  
1X Fagus sylvatica 
(Beech)  
Pollard  
This tree has a large 
open shear crack 
which originates from 
the root collar and 
extends to a height of 
over 5 metres; 
pollarding will allow 
the retention of this 
tree whilst also 
reducing the risk of 
catastrophic collapse. 
 
  

Approve works  

 

13



This page is intentionally blank.



Application Number: 2019/0943/FUL 

Site Address: Land adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre, 
Riseholme Road, Lincoln 

Target Date: 21st February 2020 

Agent Name: LK2 Architects 

Applicant Name: Bishop Grosseteste University 

Proposal: Erection of a three storey building for new teaching 
space and erection of five buildings for student 
accommodation, of three, four and five storeys with 
vehicular access from Riseholme Road. 

 
Background 
 
This application, on land in front of Yarborough Leisure Centre, proposes to 
build a three storey building for additional teaching space for Bishop 
Grosseteste University (BGU) together with a further five buildings of three 
four and five storeys to provide purpose built student accommodation for 295 
bedrooms. A new vehicular access will be formed to Riseholme Road and 40 
parking spaces provided. 
 
The land in question is allocated as a site for residential development in the 
adopted Local Plan. It is currently owned by the City of Lincoln Council with 
an agreement to sell to the applicants. 
 
Site Visit 
 
Undertaken 10 February 2020.  
 
Issues 
 
An application such as this raises a number of planning issues as follows: 
 

 National and local planning policy 

 Visual appearance and impact 

 Impact on adjacent residents 

 Traffic and pedestrian safety 

 Trees, open space and ecology 

 Drainage, archaeology, ground conditions  
 
Policies Referred to 
 
National Planning Policy Framework. Chapters: 
 

 2. Achieving sustainable development 

 4. Decision making 

 5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 

 6. Building a strong competitive economy 

 11. Making effective use of land 

 12. Achieving well-designed places 

15

Item No. 4a



 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. Policies: 
 

 LP1 – A presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 LP10 – Meeting accommodation needs 

 LP26 – Design and Amenity 

 LP32 – Lincoln’s Universities and Colleges 

 LP29 Residential Allocations - Lincoln 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of 
Community Involvement, adopted June 2006. 
 
All representations received on the application are copied in full at the end of 
this report and are also available to view on the website: 
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C0

0 
 
The applicant also undertook pre-application engagement with the local 
community and made a presentation to Councillors on 29th January. 
 
Consideration 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
 
The site is allocated in your adopted Central Lincolnshire Local Plan for 
residential development and has an indicative number of thirty nine dwellings 
attributed to the site. The NPPF and the Local Plan emphasise the importance 
of good design and considerate design that takes account of the local context. 
The site is sustainably located, within the City’s urban area and there are also 
good public transport connections adjacent to the site. The development will 
help the continued growth and associated economic benefits that BGU brings 
to the City. The applicant has provided a full assessment of the relevant 
planning policies which is available to view on the Council website and we are 
satisfied that the summary that they have made is suitable. 
 
Visual Appearance and Impact 
 
The application site, as described above, is open land bounded by trees on 
the Riseholme Road frontage. The surrounding context is of two and some 
three storey dwellings on Riseholme Road with the larger scale of buildings at 
the Leisure Centre to the west along with the adjacent school buildings. 
Riseholme Road is a main approach road into the City. 
 
The proposed buildings are three storeys on the site frontage, both the 
teaching building which is positioned to the south of the new entrance and the 
most prominent building for student accommodation to the north of the 
proposed access. The subsequent buildings to the west of the three storey 

16

https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C00
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C00
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C00


student block would then progress to one of four storeys and then two of five 
storeys deeper into the site with a fifth building at the south western side of 
the site of four and three storeys, stepping down as it approaches the rear of 
the gardens of properties on the north side of Yarborough Crescent. 
 
The architects have taken references from the successful remodelling of the 
Constance Stewart Hall on the south eastern corner of the adjacent 
Riseholme Road/Long Leys Road roundabout and the teaching block that is 
proposed would have extensive glazing to the classroom areas facing the 
road, the proportions and detailing of which are contemporary and also 
appropriate for the local area. The design does not copy adjacent houses but 
does reference the scale and proportions that are characteristic of the area.  
The student accommodation building to the immediate north of the teaching 
building, also of three storeys, references again the local proportions and 
reflects the architectural style of the wider proposals. The window sizes are 
smaller, reflecting the residential use but attention has been paid to reveals 
and framing and also to the texture and colour of the exterior finishes, adding 
interest and warmth to the appearance. The three storey height of the building 
is appropriate to this part of the City; any higher and the building could appear 
overly dominant on the road frontage.  
 
The subsequent changes in height as the development progresses west and 
away from the road gives interest and variation to the longer views, 
particularly from the north; a set of buildings of the same height could be 
unduly repetitive. The increase in height to five storeys is not inappropriate 
and will be read in the context of both the lower buildings to the east on this 
site and the larger scale of buildings at the school and the Leisure Centre. 
The careful modelling of these buildings and the stepping down towards 
Yarborough Crescent means that the scale can be satisfactorily 
accommodated without the development feeling overbearing, over tall or 
causing any unacceptable level of harm. 
 
The materials proposed for each building have been detailed by the architects 
which provide variety across the five buildings but also reference materials 
evident in the locality; there is a lot of brick deployed on the main parts of the 
elevations, with the ground floors tending to act as a plinth, being clad in dark 
grey brick and cement panels, and then brickwork on the floors above. The 
top floor of the four and five storey buildings are then clad in a glazed curtain 
walling system and the roofs of all of the buildings, which are varied and 
designed to break up what would otherwise be extensive areas of 
conventional flat roof, have a strong soffit/eaves overhang and would be clad 
in aluminium and zinc in a mid-grey with a standing seam detail.  
 
The careful blend of traditional and more contemporary materials, alongside 
the modelling and variety introduced into the different buildings means that 
this significant development does not appear over dominant or assertive in the 
street, the relationship to the main campus is created and the architecture 
does not therefore harm the character of the local area. 
 

17



The existing trees and hedging, particularly on the main road frontage, also 
contribute to the visual amenity of the local area and these will be considered 
separately below. 
 
 
 
Impact on Local Residents 
 
The application proposes teaching space associated with the main BGU 
campus which is 90 metres away to the south east and predominantly 
proposes student accommodation with 295 bedrooms and 40 parking spaces. 
 
The design and scale of the buildings has been carefully considered to 
minimise any physical impact on adjacent residents and the applicant has 
provided details as to how they will manage the use of the site to ensure that 
the day to day activity that this proposal will generate again in order to 
minimise any effect on the amenity of local residents. The site will be 
managed by BGU themselves and they have a good track record of 
successfully managing student accommodation. There are strict rules in 
relation to behaviour and indeed in relation to car use and parking which 
means that whilst students will be expected to not have a car, any who do will 
not be able to park it in local streets. Residents in Thonock Close have an 
understandable concern about this but it is matter that can be managed. The 
proximity of the accommodation to the main campus and the good public 
transport connections to the City Centre, which is in any event within easy 
walking distance, means that there is no reason for students to bring a car 
and BGU are clear that those who choose to do so and who seek to park it 
locally will be open to further action.  
 
There will be an increase in students in and around the site and on  
Riseholme Road as a consequence of the development but there are no 
grounds for asserting that this would be harmful to the amenity of local 
residents. This is a busy part of the City due to the activity already generated 
by Castle academy during the day and by Yarborough Leisure Centre on 
evenings and weekends and as a consequence any increase in activity 
generated by this site is unlikely to be particularly noticeable. Equally more 
people walking along Riseholme Road, a main approach road into the City, 
does not in itself constitute harm. 
 
It is considered that the use proposed and the scale of development can be 
satisfactorily accommodated within the local area. 
 
Traffic and Pedestrian Safety 
 
The application has been the subject of consultation with the Highway 
Authority at the County Council and their comments are appended to your 
report. The site proposes to create a new access from Riseholme Road into 
40 parking spaces. This parking area will be access controlled. The Highway 
Authority is happy with the position of the new access, in relation to both the 
adjacent roundabout and also in relation to the junction into Thonock Close. 

18



The parking spaces will not be available to students, except for those who 
have particular mobility needs. 
 
The proximity of the main campus to the south east means that there will be a 
level of pedestrian movement between this site and the campus across 
Riseholme Road/Yarborough Crescent and the Highway Authority is satisfied 
that this can happen safely. Each leg of the roundabout junction has within it a 
pedestrian island and, as adults, the students can be expected to negotiate 
crossing the road safely.  
 
The advice from the Highway Authority also contains a request for this site to 
fund increased bus services to and from the City Centre – as your officers we 
have discussed this request with the Highway Authority and advised that we 
do not consider such a request to be reasonable or proportionate. It does not 
therefore meet the tests set out in legislation in relation to off-site contributions 
from development. 
 
Trees and Landscaping 
 
The applicant has provided a detailed assessment of the current landscape of 
the site and following representations from residents and questions raised at 
the presentation to members and by your Arboricultural officer they have 
supplemented this assessment with further works which looks at all aspects of 
the existing and proposed landscaping.  
 
There is a hedge which currently runs the full length of the site frontage, this 
will be retained other than in the area of the new access. The applicants have 
detailed the exact number of plants to be removed, the protection to be 
afforded to the hedge during construction and the areas proposed for 
replanting elsewhere on the site. There will be a net gain in terms of hedge 
planting. 
 
The trees on the site frontage are a notable feature locally and consequently, 
proposals to remove some or all of them have been looked at very carefully. 
The trees are mostly sycamore and are growing in a tight group which means 
that there is an overall green canopy which is a feature of the area but 
individually the trees are of a generally poor quality. The trees are growing 
very close together and the applicant instructed their tree advisor to look at 
two options, retention of selected trees or removal and replacement.  
 
The retention option has the advantage that it retains some of the existing 
canopy and therefore the visual appearance of the tree works is less 
significant. However, as a consequence of the group growing so close 
together, the canopies of the individual trees have not developed consistently 
and the removal of the very poorest trees will inevitably leave a less than 
conventional appearance to the remainder. Trees on the edge of the group 
are leaning and should be removed and trees more central to the group have 
a canopy which has developed higher than would be expected and also would 
result in the remaining trees being more susceptible to wind damage and may 
over time result in further removals. The trees are not covered by Tree 

19



Preservation Orders or within a conservation area and so replacement could 
not be required in such circumstances. 
 
The alternative is to remove the group of trees and then replant with large 
trees along the site frontage. This is considered to be a better long term 
option, it would allow more suitable native species to be planted and would 
result in trees that will develop more naturally. It would be perfectly 
reasonable to expect, in the fullness of time, that such trees could be the 
subject of a Tree Preservation Order. 
 
The removal of trees is not something that should be considered lightly and 
there has been significant thought and effort on the part of the applicant and 
your officers to find the best solution to this issue. We would advise that the 
longer term option of removal and replacement is the better option, subject to 
the new trees being agreed in terms of both their species and their size – 
extra heavy standards.   
 
The tree planting and landscaping strategy for the wider site shows other tree 
removals and then sets out detailed new planting proposals which 
demonstrates a net gain in trees overall, understanding that the new planting 
will not attain the size of the trees removed for a number of years. Overall 
however this will give long term benefits to tree cover in this part of the City. 
 
Drainage, Archaeology and Ground Conditions 
 
Drainage – the applicants have submitted a drainage strategy that 
demonstrates that the positive drainage of the site as a result of the 
development will deal with any potential surface water issues that are 
currently experienced. The run off from the site will be collected, attenuated 
and directed to soakaways as the sub strata is largely permeable limestone. 
The drainage strategy will ensure that there is no increased risk of flooding. 
 
Ground conditions – the site is greenfield in nature but historically had a use 
as allotments and so further information has been requested by your Scientific 
Officer in relation to potential contamination. We are satisfied that this can be 
dealt with by way of a suitably worded condition. 
 
Archaeology – the applicants have submitted a desk based archaeological 
assessment following consultation with the City Archaeologist and he and we 
are satisfied that a condition will be able to deal with any such matters during 
the course of construction. The applicants are aware that Riseholme Road 
follows the route of roman Ermine Street and so there is some potential for 
archaeology within the site.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The application before you has been carefully considered and is sensitive to 
the context of the local area. The site has an allocation for housing in your 
adopted Local Plan and the use proposed, whilst not conventional housing, 
provides significant residential accommodation. The proposal allows BGU to 

20



continue to develop and ensures that there is little impact on their neighbours 
and the wider City. The design of the new buildings, their scale, location and 
the materials with which they are to be built are appropriate to this part of the 
City and the use will not cause harm to the amenity of local residents. The 
tree cover and landscaping of the site has had detailed consideration and an 
acceptable solution can be agreed.  
Financial Implications 
 
None. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None. 
 
Amendments Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of 
Application 
 
Yes. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That planning permission is granted subject to the conditions set out below. 
 
Conditions 
 

1. Development to commence within three years 
2. Development in strict accordance with the approved drawings and 

associated documents 
3. Hedge and tree protection to the in place at all times during 

construction 
4. Details of new tree planting, species and size, to be approved before 

trees are removed from site 
5. Archaeology 
6. Contaminated land assessment  
7. Retention of parking spaces at all times  

 
 
 
All relevant drawings are attached to your report but the full set of drawings 
and representations are available to view on the website. There are drawings 
within the Design and Access statements as well as provided individually and 
we would encourage you to visit the website for the fullest picture of the detail 
available with the application.  
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C0

0 

21

https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C00
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C00
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q1BTW8JFM1C00


 

22



 

 

23



 

 

24



 

 

 

25



26



 

27



This page is intentionally blank.



Land adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre- consultation responses 

Neighbour responses 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



 

30



 

 

31



 

32



 

 

 

 

33



 

34



 

35



 

 

36



 

37



 

 

 

38



 

 

39



 

40



41



 

42



 

43



 

 

44



 

 

45



 

 

46



 

 

47



 

 

48



 

 

 

 

49



 

50



 

 

51



 

 

52



 

 

53



 

 

 

 

 

54



 

55



 

56



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



Statutory consultee and external responses 

 

 

 

59



 

 

60



 

 

61



 

62



 

63



 

64



 

 

 

 

65



 

 

 

66



 

 

67



 

68



69



 

70



 

 

71



 

 

 

72



Application Number: 2019/0971/HOU 

Site Address: 86 Wolsey Way, Lincoln, Lincolnshire 

Target Date: 1st February 2020 

Agent Name: Rob Bradley Building Design Ltd 

Applicant Name: Mr C Spence 

Proposal: Erection of two storey front extension and single storey side 
extension. 

 
Background - Site Location and Description 
 
The application proposes a two storey front extension to 86 Wolsey Way. The property is a 
two storey detached dwelling. 
 
A single storey side extension is also shown on the drawings although this is permitted 
development and therefore does not require consent. 
 
The application is brought before Planning Committee at the request of Councillor Jackie 
Kirk. 
 
Site History 
 
No relevant site history. 
 
Case Officer Site Visit 
 
Undertaken on 24th January 2020. 
 
Policies Referred to 
 

 Policy LP26 Design and Amenity 

 National Planning Policy Framework  
 
Issues 
 

 Impact on Residential Amenity 

 Impact on Visual Amenity 

 Impact on Highway Safety 
 
Consultations 
 
Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community 
Involvement, adopted May 2014.  
 
Statutory Consultation Responses 
 

Consultee Comment  

 
Highways & Planning 

 
Comments Received 
 

 
 
 

73

Item No. 4b



Public Consultation Responses 
 

Name Address  

Jackie Kirk         

Mr Ernie Thompson 92 Wolsey Way 
Lincoln 
Lincolnshire 
LN2 4SJ 
 

 
Consideration 
 
National and Local Planning Policy 
 
Paragraph 11 of the revised NPPF outlines that decisions should apply a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development. For decision-taking this means approving development 
proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay. 
 
Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan 'Design and Amenity' is permissive of 
alterations to existing buildings provided the siting, height, scale, massing and form relate 
well to the site and surroundings, and duly reflect or improve on the original architectural 
style of the local surroundings; and use appropriate high quality materials, which reinforce 
or enhance local distinctiveness, with consideration given to texture, colour, pattern and 
durability. In relation to both construction and life of the development, the amenities which 
all existing and future occupants of neighbouring land and buildings may reasonably 
expect to enjoy must not be unduly harmed by or as a result of development. 
 
Neighbour Comments 
 
The occupants of No. 92 Wolsey Way have objected to the proposal, their concerns 
include, loss of light from the height and scale of the building, impact on trees and shrubs, 
impact on drainage, impact on highway safety and congestion and concern regarding 
storage of building material during construction. 
 
All representations received on the application are copied in full at the end of this report 

and are available to view on the website: 

https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=ma
keComment&keyVal=Q23G9GJFM7800 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
In terms of the impact of the extension on residential amenity, the two storey front 
extension would project approximately 7 metres from the original front elevation. The bulk 
of the extension would be adjacent to the side elevation of No. 92 Wolsey Way. The 
extension is positioned 2.1 metres from the boundary with No. 92. This neighbouring 
property is a bungalow and has a bathroom and en-suite window positioned within the side 
elevation facing the proposed extension. The extension is positioned to the south-east of 
the neighbouring property therefore there will be some loss of afternoon sunlight to the 
bathroom and en-suite windows and the side garden area of No. 92. However, as these 
windows serve none habitable rooms, it is considered that limited weight can be given to 
this impact. With regard to the side garden, the existing boundary fence restricts light into 

74

https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=makeComment&keyVal=Q23G9GJFM7800
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=makeComment&keyVal=Q23G9GJFM7800


this area already and on balance it is not considered that the loss of light from the 
proposed extension would cause a significant amount of harm to the occupants of No. 92. 
Similarly, as the main bulk of the extension would be adjacent to the side elevation of No. 
92, it is not considered that the extension would appear unduly dominant or overbearing 
from the main garden of No. 92. 
 
The extension would have a ground floor window facing the boundary with No. 92 although 
given the existing boundary fence, it is considered that privacy would be maintained 
between the two neighbours. 
 
Officers are therefore satisfied that the impact on No. 92 from the proposed extension 
would not be unduly harmful.  
 
The property is within a private cul-de-sac which means that the side windows within the 
front extension would face the front of the neighbouring property No. 84 Wolsey Way. No 
objections have been received from the occupants of No. 84. The distance between the 
extension and the front elevation of No. 84 would be 15 metres. There would be a lounge 
window within the ground floor and a bedroom and hall window in the first floor facing No. 
84. Whilst there would be opportunity for some overlooking between the windows within 
the front of No. 84 and the windows within the extension, given the 15 metre separation 
distance, it is not considered that this relationship would be unduly harmful to the 
residential amenities of No. 84. Similarly, it is not considered the proposal would appear 
overbearing when viewed from No. 84 and positioned to the south of the application site, 
loss of light would not be an issue. 
 
It is not considered that there would be any further residential properties impacted upon by 
the proposal and overall the extension is acceptable in terms of its impact on residential 
amenity. 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
With regard to visual amenity, the property is set back from Wolsey Way by approximately 
23 metres. The front extension would project 7 metres and have a gable facing Wolsey 
Way. The materials to be used in the extension would match that of the host property. 
 
Whilst the projection would be substantial, given the separation from the highway and an 
existing double garage with a hipped roof between the host property and Wolsey Way, it is 
not considered that the extension would appear unduly prominent when viewed from the 
wider area. 
 
Overall, it is considered that the proposals are acceptable and would not be harmful in 
terms of visual amenity. 
 
Impact on Highway Safety 
 
The extension would not impact on the existing driveway or garage to the front of the 
property. The drawings indicate the existing grassed area would be removed and a new 
parking area formed to the front of the property. The new parking area would not require 
consent although if any alterations are required to the highway such as an extension of the 
existing dropped kerb then separate consent from Highways at County Council would 
need to be sought. 
 

75



It is not considered that highway safety will be compromised by the extension and County 
Council as Highway Authority have raised no objections to the proposals. 
 
Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application 
 
None. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None. 
 
Equality Implications 
 
None. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed extension would not cause unacceptable harm to visual amenity, residential 
amenity or highway safety, in accordance with the relevant policies of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. 
 
Application Determined within Target Date 
 
Yes. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application is granted conditionally. 
 
Standard Conditions  
 
01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 

beginning with the date of this permission. 
   
  Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
  
02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this 

consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
the drawings listed within Table A below. 

  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the 
approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the 
application. 

   
  Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved 

plans. 
 
Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works 
 

76



  None. 
   
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented 
 
  None. 
    
Conditions to be adhered to at all times 
 
  None. 

77



This page is intentionally blank.



The following drawings and representations received as part of the application are also available to 

view on the website: 

https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q23G9GJFM7800 

 

  

Site location plan 

79

https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q23G9GJFM7800
https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q23G9GJFM7800


 

 Proposed ground floor plan  

80



 

Proposed first floor plan  

81



 

 

 

Proposed elevations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



Indicative shadowing details, taken as of 1st August 

 

  

 

83



 

84



 

  

85



Views of the application property 

 

86



87



 

88



Views from No. 92 Wolsey Way 

 

 

89



 

 

90



 

Mr Ernie Thompson 92 Wolsey Way Lincoln Lincolnshire LN2 
4SJ (Objects) 
Comment submitted date: Mon 23 Dec 2019 
Mr & Mrs E T & P Thompson 
"Thackeray" 92 Wolsey Way 
Nettleham Park 
Lincoln 
LN2 4 SJ 
Lincolnshire 
 
 
23 December 2019 
 
Directorate of Communities and Environment 
For the Attention of Simon Walters MBA, ACIS, MCMI 
City Hall 
Beaumont Fee 
Lincoln LN1 1DF 
 
Your Reference 2091/0971/HOU dated 16th December 2019 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Consultation on Application for Planning 
Permission - 86 Wolsey Way Lincoln , Lincolnshire 
LN2 4 SJ 
 
Dear Mr Walters , 
 
Further to your letter and notification of the application for Planning Permission that has 
been received and has been validated by the Local Planning Authority on the 6th 
December. 
 
As the owner of the neighbouring bungalow where this proposed Erection of a two 
storey front extension and single storey side extension where this Development is 
outlined . 
 
We wish to raise our objections to the development based on the following points: 
 
We own the bungalow and have lived here for 20 years. 
 
Common Law - Right to Light 
 
1) My right to light is protected in England and Wales under Common Law based on 
adverse possession or by prescription act 1832, I do not waive my right to light and that 
the proposed development will block my right to light coming into my home in the 
following rooms, our ensuite, shower room our toilet and bathroom and restrict light to 
our master bedroom and kitchen by the overshadowing of our bungalow by this 
proposed development. 
 
2) We have had a continuous uninterrupted right of light for 20 years in line with the 
Prescription Act above. 
 

91



Overshadowing our Bungalow - Scale and Height 
 
3) The Scale and height of this proposed development will cast shadow and the reduced 
light to our property, to our mature garden by up to 40% which will have an impact on 
our mature Trees, Shrubs, flower beds and lawn. 
The impact will result in poor growing conditions by the loss of light, sunshine, and 
restricted light / shadows created. 
 
4) This will have an adverse effect on my growing conditions in my small but modest 
allotment and any produce in the future because of the reduced light and 
overshadowing. 
Proximity and Boundary lines 
 
5) The single side storey will be developed to within one (1) meter of our boundary fence 
and impact on our mature trees roots and shrubs by the depth of the foundations that 
will be required, the two storey Front extension is within three (3) meters of our 
Boundary fence and within five (5) meters of our roof line of the bungalow. 
 
6) The Depth of the excavation of three (3) meters adjacent to our property creates 
cause for concern as our drainage and pipework runs parallel with the excavations and 
because of the close proximity to our bungalow have concerns for the integrity of our 
own foundations and stability of the land as our property was built in 1982. 
 
Environmental Impact Assessment - Surface Water Displacement 
 
7) Because the scale and size of the proposed development and the additional parking 
area I have concerns over the impact of the displacement of ground / surface water and 
any impact to our land of either increased water levels or the adverse condition of drying 
out which will have and impact on our own drainage and pipe work that runs parallel with 
the proposed development and any issues that may then affect my foundations of my 
bungalow and any potential for subsidence to our property because of this proposed 
development. 
 
Effects on Mature Trees and Shrubs 
 
8) Because we have lived here continuously for 20 years we have a mature garden 
surrounded by mature Trees that are professionally maintained annually and have 
concerns over their restricted light and root disturbance created any this development. 
 
9) The loss of and impact to the roosting and nesting within these trees for birds and 
insects by the loss of light and reduced light caused by the overshadowing by this 
proposed development. As we have nesting birds, butterflies, frogs, toads and 
hedgehogs that reside in our garden. 
 
10) We encourage and protect our green space for the wild life and habitat of our garden 
and mature trees. Ensuring that the environment and biodiversity is maintained as much 
as possible. By considerate planting and plant selections to encourage them into the 
garden green spaces. 
 
Amenity Restriction 
 
11) The Residential amenity is considered as the benefit enjoyed from physical external 

92



space which is part of our private home and that our private amenity space allows us as 
individuals to carry out household and leisure activities and exercise by the use of our 
allotment and garden space, this will be greatly impacted upon by this development. 
 
Highway Safety and Congestion 
 
12) We have concerns over the increased vehicular activity and pollution created despite 
the proposed plans looking to provide additional off street parking, whereby we already 
have cars parked on the street directly outside our property and within 5 meters of our 
driveway and 10 meters from the junction of Thurlow Court despite there being adequate 
off street parking in front of the garage spaces. Causing obstructions during peak times 
impacting our safe access / egress from our driveway and from neighbours driveway 
opposite and surrounding properties. 
 
13) The safe access and egress from the properties adjacent because of the close 
proximity 50 meters to the junction of Lilford Road and the mini roundabout of Wolsey 
Way 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
E T Thompson 
 

Comment: Further to my Objection of the 23rd December 

I have reviewed the Application declaration and wish to further point out that the 
Application States the there are no Trees or Shrubs to be removed or trimmed at 
point 6 not sure how this can be the case when additional car parking is to be 
delivered as part of the proposed development . 
Point 7 states that no changes to the pedestrian or vehicular access again they have 
stated no but the additional parking will require dedicated access without 
encroaching on neighbouring access rights and drive ways. 
I cannot see where the plant, building materials and contractors are going to be 
sighted without causing either highways obstruction on the busy Wolsey Way or 
restricting access to neighbouring drives and access / egress without causing 
problems to grass verges as have been seen recently along Wolsey Way from other 
developments. 
 

 

Highways & Planning 
Comment Date: Thu 19 Dec 2019 
No Objections 
 

93



This page is intentionally blank.


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 29 January 2020
	3 Work to Trees in City Council Ownership
	4a Land Adjacent to Yarborough Leisure Centre, Riseholme Road, Lincoln
	BGU Yarborough drawings
	Land adj. Yarborough Leisure Centre consultee responses

	4b 86 Wolsey Way, Lincoln
	86 Wolsey Way comments and drawings


